
 
 
Notice of a public  

Decision Session - Executive Member for Culture, Leisure & 
Communities 

 
To: Councillor Smalley (Executive Member) 

 
Date: Monday, 22 July 2019 

 
Time: 2.30 pm 

 
Venue: The Frank Green Room - 2nd Floor,  West Offices 

(S015) 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Notice to Members – Post Decision Calling In: 
 
Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* 
on this agenda, notice must be given to Democratic Services by 
4:00 pm on Wednesday, 24 July 2019. 
 
*With the exception of matters that have been subject of a 
previous call in, require Full Council approval or are urgent which 
are not subject to the call-in provisions. Any called in items will be 
considered by the Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny 
Management Committee. 

 
Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be 
submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00 pm on Thursday, 18 July 
2019. 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point in the meeting, the Executive Member is asked to 

declare: 

 any personal interests not included on the Register of 
Interests;  

 any prejudicial interests; 

 any disclosable pecuniary interests 

http://modgov.york.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=144&Year=0
http://modgov.york.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=144&Year=0


 

which they may have in respect of business on this agenda. 
 

2. Minutes   (Pages 1 - 2) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the Decision Session – 

Executive Member for Culture, Leisure & Tourism held on 18 
March 2019. 
 

3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 

registered to speak can do so. The deadline for registering is 
5.00pm on Friday, 19 July 2019.  Members of the public can 
speak on agenda items or matters within the Executive Member’s 
remit. 
 
To register to speak please contact the Democracy Officer for the 
meeting, on the details at the foot of the agenda. 
 
Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings 
Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting 
may be filmed and webcast,or recorded, including any registered 
public speakers who have given their permission. The broadcast 
can be viewed at http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts or, if 
recorded, this will be uploaded onto the Council’s website 
following the meeting. 
 
Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors 
and Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This 
includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting.  Anyone 
wishing to film, record or take photos at any public meeting 
should contact the Democracy Officer (contact details are at the 
foot of this agenda) in advance of the meeting. 
 
The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of 
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a 
manner both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all 
those present.  It can be viewed at  
 
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webc
asting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809  
 
 

http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809


 

4. York Learning -  Strategic / Service Plan 
2019/20   

(Pages 3 - 18) 

 This report sets out the strategic direction of York Learning and 
presents a one year service / business plan for the academic 
year commencing in September 2019.   
 

5. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Executive Member considers 

urgent under the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
 

Democracy Officer: 
 
Fiona Young 
Tel: 01904 552030 
Email: fiona.young@york.gov.uk  
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting Fiona Young 
Democracy Officer 
 

 Registering to speak 

 Written Representations 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 

 

 

mailto:bartek.wytrzyszczewski@york.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Decision Session - Executive Member for 
Culture, Leisure & Tourism 

Date 18 March 2019 

Present Councillor Ayre 

   

 

18. Declarations of Interest  
 
The Executive Member confirmed that he had no personal 
interests not included on the Register of Interests, nor any 
prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests, to declare in the 
business on the agenda. 
 

19. Minutes  
 
Resolved: That the minutes of the Decision Session held on 25 

January 2019 be approved and signed by the 
Executive Member as a correct record. 

 
20. Public Participation  

 
It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at 
the session under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 

21. Cold Calling Controlled Zones - update  
 
The Executive Member considered a report which reviewed the 
success of Cold Calling Controlled Zones (CCCZs) in York to 
date and arrangements for their future delivery. 
 
There were currently CCCZs in all wards in York, with 232 
individual zones covering 8,501 homes.  Most had been 
implemented by the Public Protection Team between 2007 and 
2014.  A further 16 had been implemented following a report to 
the Decision Session on 23 October 2017, when the Executive 
Member had approved a new ‘pay as you go’ approach to 
enable communities to introduce, administer and review zones.  
Funding was provided via ward committees, at a cost of £650 
per CCCZ. 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 2



Residents living in CCCZs had been consulted in 2018 as part 
of a review of the zones’ effectiveness.  Of the 96 respondents, 
86% considered that cold calling had decreased since creation 
of the CCCZ, 87% felt more confident about dealing with cold 
callers and 100% wished to remain within a CCCZ. 
 
The Executive Member noted that there were three wards 
missing from the data set and the officer agreed to update the 
Executive Member at a later date.  
 
The Executive Member also suggested that perhaps an 
information session or communication to all Ward Councillors 
could be organised in the future to ensure that Members 
understand the powers associated with CCCZ’s.  
 

Resolved: That the report be noted and the existing funding 
approach for Cold Calling Controlled Zones be 
approved. 

 
Reason: In line with the results of consultation and to 

continue to help residents feel more confident about 
dealing with cold callers. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Cllr N Ayre, Chair 
[The meeting started at 16:30 and finished at 16:45]. 

Page 2



 

  
 

   

 

Decision Session - Executive Member for 
Culture, Leisure and Communities 

 
 

         22 July 2019 

 
Report of the Assistant Director (Communities and Culture) 
 

 
York Learning – Strategic / Service Plan 2019/20 
 

Summary 

1. This report sets out the strategic direction of York Learning and 
presents a one year service / business plan for the academic year 
commencing in September 2019.  This forms a key part of the 
governance arrangements for the service.   

Recommendations 

2. The Executive Member is asked to consider the attached Strategic / 
Service Plan and approve it subject to any suggested changes. 

Reason:  To provide a sound governance arrangement for York 
Learning Services.  

Background 

3. York Learning is a council service which delivers a range of learning 
programmes to support people into employment, to improve their skills 
and to support their personal development. The service is funded 
almost exclusively from external contract funding and fee income. For 
the academic year 2018/19 this is in the region £3.3m, an increase of 
about £400k on the previous year. 

4. This report gives an overview of the service and sets out some of the 
opportunities and challenges that the service faces over the next 12 
months and beyond.  It includes a detailed action plan to achieve 
service ambitions for the next 12 months.   

Page 3 Agenda Item 4



 Consultation  

5. The plan is presented for consultation and approval. It has gone 
through some internal service consultation with senior managers and is 
influenced by a rigorous self-assessment process which is ongoing. 

Options 

6. The attached plan is presented for comment and amendment by the 
Executive Member prior to approval. 

Analysis 

7. This will be a dynamic document with actions added as appropriate. 
Any major changes to the plan will be approved by the Executive 
Member. 

Monitoring and Review 

8. Performance against the action plan is reported to Children, Education 
and Communities Scrutiny Committee twice yearly in the form of an 
update report. 

9. In January, the Executive Member receives the service’s self-
assessment report which draws on performance in the previous 
academic year and helps to shape the strategic plan for the following 
academic year. 

Corporate Objectives 

10. Any plans and strategies developed are set within the context of the 
council plan but also respond to a number of sub-regional, regional and 
national policy objectives.    

Implications 

11. Finance:  The service is fully funded via external contracts and grants. 
Whilst the service has robust procedures in place to ensure the 
services maximises income this is not without some risks. 

12. Crime and Disorder:  Whilst there are no direct crime and disorder 
implications contained within the plan, the service has a strategy to 
support the “Prevent” strand of the Governments Anti-Terrorism 
strategy, and this is part of clear contractual and legal requirements.   

Page 4



13. The report has no additional Human Resources, Equalities, Legal, 
Information Technology, Property or other implications beyond those 
highlighted in the plan. 

Risk Management 

14. In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy the main 
risks that have been identified associated with the proposals contained 
in this report are those which could lead to the inability to meet 
business objectives and to deliver services, leading to damage to the 
Council’s reputation and failure to meet stakeholders’ expectations.  
The level of risk is assessed as “Low”.  This is acceptable but means 
that regular monitoring is required of the operation of the new 
arrangements. 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

Angela Padfield  
Acting Head of York 
Learning 

Charlie Croft 
Assistant Director (Communities & 
Equalities) 
 

Report 
Approved 

 Date 10 July 2019 

Wards Affected:   All  

For further information please contact the author of the report 

 
Annexes 

1.  Annex 1 Learning Services Strategic Plan 19/20.   

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 1 
 

 

 York Learning  
Strategic Plan  

2019/20 
 
 

Service:  
Communities and Culture 
 
York Learning 
 

  

Directorate:  
Children, Education and Communities 
 

  

  

Director:  
Amanda Hatton 
 

  

Cabinet 
Member:  

 

Cllr Darryl Smalley   

 

 
 
  

Page 7



 
2 
 

 

 

Section 1: The Service  
York Learning is the City of York Council adult education and community learning service that focuses on 
improving people’s core skills, including English, maths, ICT and skills for work and contributing to their 
health and well being. The service also provides the largest range of leisure and health and wellness 
learning programmes in the city. Provision is secured exclusively by external funding and contracts and 
the service has a zero base budget. 
 
Key priorities for the service remain on developing skills for employment and to support health and well 
being. The service continues to focus on core skills of English, maths and ICT as these are the building 
blocks for the development of other skills and are key to the development of further learning.  In brief 
priority areas include: 

 Developing and improving skills in English, maths and ICT 

 Learning to support people back into work or improve ‘in’ work skills to enable them to progress 

 Full time 16-18 programmes, including personalised learning programmes for some of the city’s 
most vulnerable young people 

 19+ High Needs Support (HNS), personalised learning programmes through sub-contracted 
arrangements 

 16-18 and 19+ Apprenticeships, supporting national and local priorities 

 Developing the skills of parents and carers to support children’s learning 

 Learning to support and improve peoples’ mental health and well being 

 Personal development and leisure learning 

Turnover for 2018/19 academic year was £3.3m, (an increase of £400k on 17/18, mainly as a result of 
increases in funding for 16-18 High Needs Support, fee income and loans funded provision).  
 
Turnover for 2019/20 is expected to be £3.5 m, mainly as a result of continuing demand for High Needs 
Personalised learning programmes, fee income and loans funded provision, with all of the funding 
secured from external contracts and fee income. The service is expecting a reduction in funding for 
Apprenticeships overall, partly as a result of changing qualification aims and no longer offering Health & 
Social Care qualifications and some Level 2 qualifications due to low recruitment and poor success in this 
area.    Some of this reduction will be offset with increased Learner loans sales.    
 
Increased funding has recently been confirmed related to our Family Learning team leading on a 
community strand of the Social Mobility Project; this will involve a grant of £50,613 over a three year 
period from Shine, an education charity based in Leeds.  This will promote engagement with families, 
recruiting them onto bespoke Family Learning provision and other appropriate learning paths. 
 
The service employs 180 staff, with some 60 full and part-time contracted staff and 120 sessional tutors 
and support staff. The service had just over 6994 student enrolments in 2018/19 which is close to 3500 
students.  Currently the service operates from 40 community venues with substantial provision at York 
and Acomb Explore, Huntington, Fulford and York High secondary schools and Huntington Community 
centre, our counselling provision is at the Centre@Burnholme Reading Café, as well as local primary 
schools and children’s centres.  The service operates its 16-18 full-time programme (targeted to some of 
the most vulnerable young people in the City) currently from Rougier House on Rougier Street, where 
there are dedicated learning rooms and a fully equipped ICT suite.  This provision will move during the 
Autumn term to new premises in Fishergate.   The service management headquarters are in West 

Page 8



 
3 
 

 

 

Offices, with the main service reception located within CYC customer centre. 
 
The service had its last Ofsted Inspection in February 2016 which resulted in the service being judged as 
Good, thus maintaining its status from the previous inspection. Achievement rates in the majority of 
areas of provision are above the national average (judged as the % of those people successfully 
achieving the qualification compared with those who started the course), as reported in the service self-
assessment report. Success rates for essential skills in English, maths and ICT continue to be ‘Good’ with 
maths particularly has had ‘Excellent’ performance.  Unfortunately our Apprenticeships programmes 
have some areas in minimum standards for the second year running (minimum standards is achievement 
rates of below 67%).  This has triggered sanctions from the ESFA (Education Skills Funding Agency) to 
stop further recruitment to specific qualifications.  Part of those actions is leading us to find an 
alternative provider to take on those qualifications and respective learners.  Whilst this will reduce our 
Apprenticeship funding we are increasing our Advanced Learner Loan take up which should help reduce 
the financial shortfall.   
 
The service has maintained a highly successful leisure learning programme at a time when other local 
authority providers have substantially reduced this type of provision. This has not only enabled the 
service to continue to offer local residents highly valued and popular courses, but enabled some cross 
subsidy of other programmes where fee income is impossible to collect.  
 
The service offers a range of programmes including but not restricted to the following: 

 English and maths functional skills and GCSE programmes 

 ICT programmes to support Digital inclusion and skills for work 

 Full-time 16-18 programmes including personalised learning programmes 

 A range of arts, craft, cultural, health and well being programmes 

 Family Learning Programmes as part of a first steps back into learning and work 

 Employability and work preparation programmes 

 16-18 and 19+ Apprenticeships 

 Essential workplace qualifications to improve skills  

 Targeted provision to support health, well being and personal development 

 A range of loan-funded programmes at level 3,4 and 5, to support improvement of skills for work 

Section 2: Mission and Vision 
The service mission and vision are drawn from the CYC Council Plan. The service will seek to support and 
implement clear council policies relating to Skills and Employment focussing on supporting Adults to 
improve their life chances, but also on improving Adult Skills to support young people, particularly 
through Family Learning. Where appropriate the service will work with local employers to improve the 
workforce skills and support new developments as appropriate. The service mission and vision are 
included below: 

Our Vision 
All our clients have the skill and motivation to maximise their life chances  

Our Mission 
Support people to achieve the best they possibly can, by delivering learning, skills and 

employability programmes to suit their needs 

Page 9



 
4 
 

 

 

Section 3: Operating Context 
The service primarily provides learning to adults, in partnership and with links to a number of other 
learning providers. It has a unique place in the city providing community based learning in a variety of 
community venues throughout York.  The service offers a non-campus based programme in local 
communities; a feature often sighted by learners as significant to them. There are close partnership links 
with Explore York, who provide three significant community spaces for delivery, York Explore, Acomb 
Explore and Clifton. These high quality spaces are vital to the delivery of York Learning programmes. 

There are strong partnership arrangements through York Community Learning Partnership and Higher 
York for the planning and promotion of learning. York WEA, (Workers’ Educational Association) York 
College, York Explore, York Museum Trust and York University are significant and active partners who 
collaborate to produce joint publicity, celebration events and other promotional activity.  Joint planning 
of programmes is developing although there is still significant work to do in this area. The Family 
Learning team liaise with children’s centres, local primary schools and education advisers to ensure 
programmes support local early years and primary school priorities and initiatives. In the area of 16-18 
programmes and personalised learning for 19-25 there is a very strong and productive relationship with 
Blueberry Academy, Choose 2 Youth, Ad Astra, Toolbox and United response. This secures provision for 
the most vulnerable learners in the city and provides a highly cost effective programme. 

In common with most public sector organisations, core funding for provision is reducing year on year 
and the service is continually seeking new funding streams to diversify its offer, in order to continue to 
support some of the most vulnerable adults and young people in the city. The service is responsive to 
additional funding opportunities as they arise and is well placed to take forward opportunities to help 
support individuals who are unemployed, have poor digital or essential skills or those returning to the 
workplace. 

Core work for the service continues to focus to a large extent on getting people ready for work and 
improving their skills so that they can improve their work and life chances, whilst also working to 
support those who are most vulnerable and perhaps some way from the job market.  Those who are 
further away from the job market require intensive one to one support to individuals.  To support this 
we continue to receive funding on two projects Positive Progressions and Action Towards Inclusion 
which involves both Leeds City Region LEP (Local Enterprise Partnership) and York and North Yorkshire 
LEP. This can involve work beyond the city boundaries, either in direct delivery or in partnership work as 
part of a larger contract. 

Section 4: Priority Focus 
Key priorities for the service remain around developing skills for employment, to support health and well 
being and creating learning opportunities in our communities. The service continues to focus on core 
skills of English, maths and ICT as these are the building blocks for the development of other skills and 
are ‘key’ to the development of further learning alongside a general focus on supporting people skills to 
gain employment. In brief priority areas include: 

 Full time 16-18 programmes, including personalised learning programmes for some of the city’s 
most vulnerable young people 

 16-18 and 19+ Apprenticeships, supporting national and local priorities 

 Developing and improving skills in English, maths and ICT 

 Programmes designed to support parents and individuals to support children’s learning 

 Programmes designed to support and improve peoples’ mental health and well being 

Page 10



 
5 
 

 

 

 Programmes to support people’s personal and cultural development and leisure learning 

 Programmes designed to support people back into work or to improve in work skills to enable 
them to progress 

Section 5: Challenges 
Funding for programmes remains the single key challenge for the service. This is both in securing new 
funding to develop the offer and respond to local needs.   
 
There are also some risks associated with contract compliance and reaching maximum contract values. 
Whilst the service is aware of those risks and takes the appropriate action to monitor and mitigate those 
risks, there remain some challenges in ensuring that the resources dedicated to fulfilling the contracts do 
not exceed the value of the contracts themselves. This is particularly a risk in the early “capacity 
building" phase of a new contract, where initial investment is needed to secure the model, but where 
the funding is insufficient in the early stages to cover this.  Close monitoring of projects therefore is 
hoped to inform on those risk early on. 
 
One very specific contract risk that was identified in the previous strategic plan relates to the 16-18 full 
time learning programme.   The funding received against this program does not fully cover the costs in 
delivering the programme and relies heavily on other areas of our provision financially supporting it.  It is 
hoped that changing to a new, more appropriate venue will enable increases to learner numbers, and 
increase support to those additional needs, which will generate more funding, whilst at the same time 
reducing our building overheads.  The service will remain vigilant as this area supports some of the most 
vulnerable young people in the City.   
 
The Apprenticeship offer still requires improvement and is continuing to perform below minimum 
standards.  Whilst their overall performance is in an upwards direction it will take another year for them 
to be out of minimum standards.  A further year at minimum standards may trigger further sanctions 
from the ESFA but our action plan has included additional responses/actions from ourselves which were 
above the ESFA’s requirements.  This we hope will mitigate any further sanctions.  Processes observed 
within the apprenticeship offer have shown that investment is required for an e-portfolio system and 
this is currently being investigated.   
 
Investment is required to improve our current data processes if we are to meet our Ofsted and audit 
requirements and future growth is affected by our administratively heavy processes due to those 
current data systems.  A continuing challenge is monitoring retention (attendance) and tracking 
(monitoring on course progress) progress in our wider community learning and apprenticeship offer, due 
to our data systems not providing timely information.  Not achieving good outcomes can lead to some 
punitive measures taken by the Education and Skills Funding Agency. The service is actively pursuing a 
new MiS (Management Information System) system and liaising with the relevant finance and ICT 
departments.  
 
The provision continues to see an increase in learners with complex emotional, mental health and socio-
economic needs. This places a significant strain on staff, both in terms of time and emotional strain to 
support learners. To help us respond to this we are developing our IAG and Wellbeing offer to support 
individuals into community activities and learning opportunities to develop their resilience.   Our staff 
continue to be supported by the wellbeing systems in place by CYC.   
 

Page 11



 
6 
 

 

 

 
Future joint management of the service with North Yorkshire will be challenging due to different Council 
processes, pay scales and funding priorities.  However there are good teams in place to help support this 
process and monitor potential problems.  
 
Our governance processes require strengthening to achieve the level of scrutiny Ofsted expects.  The 
service is investigating a Pre Governance Board to improve the effectiveness of governance of the 
service.  The board would consist of a group of board members who are independent of the local 
authority.   To improve our level of scrutiny a member of the Council’s scrutiny board would  be 
recruited to be able to report to scrutiny any issues and concerns raised by the wider body of the board 
that reflects the communities we represent.   The scrutiny board member would be required to have the 
right balance of knowledge relating to community, adult teaching & learning, business and economy, 
whilst supporting us towards an offer than supports improved economic growth and effectiveness in our 
communities.  

Page 12



 
7 

 

  

 

York Learning Strategic Service Plan :  Actions 2019/20 Academic Year  -  

Ref 
Activity 

 
Target 
date 

Performance 
18/19 

Target for 19/20 
Progress to 

date 
Commentary 

 

1 

Consolidate partnership working 
with North Yorkshire County 
Council and agree a strategy for 
future collaborative working  

Ongoing  
Shared 

resource 
2 areas  

Permanent 
Joint Head 
Post to be 
recruited 
before end 
of year 

 

CYC and NYCC currently share a Chief Executive of 
Service until the end of August.  Talks have been 
taking place to recruit a permanent Joint Head of 
Service to cover both York and North Yorkshire.  The 
job description is currently being agreed and 
approved to go to advertisement during July.  It is 
hoped to have a person in place for January.  The 
current arrangement of an Acting Head is to stay in 
place at CYC. 

2 

Continue to secure and extend 
provision for High needs support 
students as part of a “Personalised 
Learning”  for 16-19 year olds and 
for 19-24 with learning difficulties 
and disabilities 

Ongoing 79 85  

The significant increase in learner numbers for the 
academic year 2018/19 has continued. The service is 
still looking to secure funding to support this growth is 
agreed and in place from CYC.  

3 

Deliver 4 jobs fair as part of a 
strategy to support York residents 
into work 

 
5 Job Fairs to 

date 

4 Job Fairs  
70 employers 
800 attendees 

 

Exceeded expectations in 18/19 but further funding 
for future job fairs is required to book the required 
venues now for September 2020. 
 

4 

Develop further English for 
Speakers of Other Languages 
programmes in response to 
demand 

 
Increased by 
15 Learners 

1 Additional 
Class to be 

created 
 

We have upwards of 90 ESOL learners on board, with 
2 new Syrian families arriving - an increase of over 20 
over last year, just under half of the learners are from 
the Refugee Resettlement project, most others are 
living and working in the city.  Suitable city centre 

P
age 13



 
8 

 

  

premises remain a challenge – currently spread 
between West Offices, York RI, Aspire Igen and York 
Explore. 

5 

Revise and develop new Family 
Learning Programmes to 
reinvigorate the programme and 
develop further support for 
learners 

Ongoing 
New 

measure 
4 additional 

classes 
 

Existing Keep Up programmes enhanced 
Widespread survey conducted (over 350 participants) 
to find out what parents want. New Wider Family 
Learning workshops and courses, new Early Start 
model being written for parents of 1-2 year olds. 
Significant problems being experienced due to 
change of use of some of our traditional venues 
(school and children’s centre rooms). Participating in 
Social Mobility project in the west of the city. 

6 

Develop and lead on new IAG and 
Networking model to engage both 
partner organisations and new 
learners 

Ongoing 
New 

measure 
2 pilots  

We are setting up Information, Advice and Guidance 
training for those working in our communities, 
including volunteers and potential learning 
champions to network, engage, signpost and advise 
effectively. Some of this work forms a strand of the 
Social Mobility project. 

7 

Secure a new MIS system for the 
service to improve and develop 
data compliance and competence 

Ongoing March 19 

Part 
procurement by 

Dec 19 / full 
procurement by 

Dec 20  

 

Further work with the ICT department is pointing 
towards a delay to September 2020.  Reviewed risk 
and have concluded that certain modules have to be 
purchased earlier.  Currently ongoing discussions with 
IT, Finance and Procurement.  

8 

As a result of the above action, 
secure a new a new online 
enrolment system that is fully 
integrated into a new 
management information system 

Ongoing 

Procurement 
process to be 

in place by 
March 19 

Procurement by 
Dec 19  

Ongoing – 
Suggested 
completion 
Sep 20 

See above.  

P
age 14



 
9 

 

  

9  

Continue to improve success rates 
in those programmes that are at 
risk of falling below minimum 
standards particularly 
apprenticeships 

Ongoing 

Improve 
Apprenticesh
ips Success 

Rates to 
above 

Minimum 
standards  

Jan 2021  

Successfully have all areas above Minimum levels of 
performance except Apprenticeships. ESFA have now 
imposed sanctions on the Apprenticeships offer.  An 
agreed action plan is in place to help improve this 
area.  Unfortunately as many learners are on 
programme for 2 years there is no way to improve 
these figures until later next year when many of the 
learners who have left and end dates have passed.   

10 

Creation of a Pre Governance 
Board to improve overall scrutiny 
and effectiveness of the service 

New 
action 

New 
Measure 

Pre Governance 
Board to meet 

by Jan 2020 
 

The first stage towards this action is to recruit a 
member from Scrutiny who is willing to also sit on the 
pre-governance board.  

 
 
Performance Targets 2019/20 

 
The following are some general performance information that the service uses as part of its performance management measures.  These are further split 
into smaller “subject targets” for individual managers and monitored on a quarterly basis.  

                     
 
 Target area Date 

18/19 
Actual 

Target 
19/20 

Progress 
1st 
Quarter 

Full year 
31/07/20 

Commentary 

1 
 
 
 

Fee income  31/03/20 480k 480k   

Unlike most of the targets in this plan, this is a financial 
year target. We exceeded our 18/19 target however 
administrative processes are under pressure and further 
growth in this area is limited until new systems are in place.  

2 

Student enrolments 
to non-qualification 
bearing courses 

31/07/20 5278 5300   

Numbers have continued to increase however further 
growth is becoming limited due to non efficient systems 
which are putting increasing pressure on our administrative 
teams.      

P
age 15



 
10 

 

  

3 

Total number of 16-
18 Apprenticeships  
( Starts) 
(Carried over) 
 

31/07/20 36 25  

  
Due to ESFA sanctions there will be a reduction in the offer 
for this area.   

4 

Total number of 19+ 
Apprenticeships 
(Starts) 
Carried over  

31/07/20 70 50  

 Due to ESFA sanctions there will be a reduction in the offer 
for this area.   

5 GCSE English 31/07/20 25 
 

30 
 

  

Targets are determined by funding which is shared across 
accredited programmes and has not increased. These 
numbers represent individual qualification aims and not 
learners.   Enquiries on GCSEs fell in 18/19 – partly due to 
lower unemployment/access to courses/less advertising as 
course numbers had grown significantly since 2015-16. 
Advertising is being stepped up this year. 

6 GCSE Maths 31/07/20 50 
 

55 
 

 
 See above 

7 Functional English 31/07/20 75 90   

Targets determined as above. Numbers in community 
venues have decreased this year mainly as a result of cuts 
in outreach activity. This is countered from funding point of 
view by increase in ESOL numbers.   One of the aims of the 
IAG programmes above is to bring in more referrals across 
English and maths provision. We are also looking at overall 
marketing strategy and planning increase in apprenticeship 
support in terms of more appropriate referrals to skills pre-
adult apprenticeships. 

8 Functional Maths  31/07/20 67 
80 

 
 See above 

 
9 Full time 16-18 31/07/20 21 30   This programme has undergone a change in curriculum 

P
age 16



 
11 

 

  

Foundation Learning 
Programme 

 with revised eligibility criteria and induction process.  There 
have been significant challenges within this offer, due to an 
increased level of mental health issues in young people 
which has impacted retention and their ability to stay on 
programme.   
 

10 

Full time 18-25 High 
Needs Support 
students  
personalised learning 
programmes 

31/07/20 94 100  

 
 
 

We are anticipating a continued increase in numbers of 
High Needs Students coming through our provision in 
academic year 18/19. The majority of this provision is sub-
contracted with Blueberry Academy, Choose2youth and 
United Response.  There is a high likelihood that demand 
will exceed funding available.   

11 
Functional Skills 
English 16-18 

31/07/20 19 19   
These represent a very small cohort of learners  within our 
foundation learning and  personalised learning programmes 

12 
Functional Skills 
Maths 16-18 

31/07/20 
25 25   

See above  

13        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 17



 
12 

 

  

 

P
age 18


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 York Learning -  Strategic / Service Plan 2019/20
	Learning Services Strategic Plan 19-20 Annex 1


